ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Sept enber 16, 2005
12: 03 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Mark Neuman

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative JimEl kins, Co-Chair
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Bill Thomas
Representative Mary Kapsner
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

COW TTEE CALENDAR

BUSI NESS ACCESS DURI NG TI MES OF CONSTRUCTI ON
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

HEATHER W LKI NS
Creeksi de Pl aza
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns.

CRAI G THORN, Manager

First National Bank Al aska

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns.

JOHN WAI SANEN

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions and provi ded
clarifications.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- Sept ember 16, 2005



NONG HASTANAND

Sabai Rest aur ant

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns.

GORDON KEI TH, Regi onal Director

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities
(No address provided)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questi ons.

HANK HARTMAN

Mat anuska Musi c

Cr eeksi de Pl aza

Wasi | | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns.

JEFF POTTS, Engi neer
(No address provi ded)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered to answer questions.

STU GRAHAM Enpl oyee

Al aska C ub

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns.

DI ANE KELLER, WMayor

City of Wasilla

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns.

PAUL GARDNER

lvanti Inc.

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns.

SHARRI SM TH, Oaner

Col d Stone Creanery

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR CARL GATTO called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 12:03:59 PM Represent ati ves

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- Sept ember 16, 2005



Gatto and Neuman were present at the call to order. Also in
attendance were Representative Stoltze and Senator Huggi ns.

Busi ness Access During Times O Construction

[ Audi o begins shortly after the neeting actually began.]

HEATHER WLKINS, Creekside Plaza, informed the commttee that
busi nesses have experienced |osses ranging from 5-50 percent.
She related that the average loss in both of her buildings is 30

per cent. Busi nesses can't survive that, she opined. Ms.
W1l kins highlighted that businesses in the area weren't warned
in advance of entrance closures. Furthernore, there were no

signs informng the public that other entrances were avail able.
Therefore, summer revenue was |lost and people have to be
convinced to return to the mall to shop. In response to Co-
Chair Gatto, Ms. WIkins opined that the perfect solution would
be to performall the work at night. However, she acknow edged
that it's not possible. Therefore, she suggested better
conmuni cati on, specifically having tw weeks notice for
schedul es while understanding the possibility of change. Ms.
WIlkins said that if she received such information she would be
willing to pass it out to her tenants.

CO CHAIR GATTO asked if the best manner in which to address this
is for departnent personnel to go door-to-door to inform by
provi di ng a docunent, those businesses that will be inpacted.

M5. WLKINS replied yes. She further suggested erecting signs
specifying the location of business access in a l|ocation that
allows notorists tinme to turn. Ms. WIlkins informed the
committee that businesses can't nake their own signs because
they have to be approved by Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities (DOT&F) and |ocated where the departnent
specifies. However, the departnment won't provide them

12: 08: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN surmised then that a reader board
specifying the entrance I|ocations of businesses would be
hel pful . Representative Neuman said he was struck by the fact
that businesses can't provide their own signs. He opined that
such should be allowed to occur in cooperation with DOT&PF

CO- CHAIR GATTO noted that he had difficulty getting to First
Nati onal Bank for a few days.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- Sept ember 16, 2005



12: 10: 09 PM

CRAI G THORN, Manager, First National Bank Al aska, said he knew
there would be problenms during construction. However, he said
he was upset that no one took the tinme to inform him of his
entrance cl osures. He said he was sure that this has inpacted
hi s busi ness. M. Thorn then related that the double turn |ane
in Wasilla has served the area well. However, now there is a
median that won't allow a left turn into and out of the bank,
which isn't adequate. After discussions with DOT&PF, he said he
woul d suggest elimnating 250 feet of nedian and returning to
the double center turn |ane. In response to Chair Gatto, M.
Thorn said that to his know edge there will be no service road
to access the bank. At this point, to enter and exit the bank,
it's aright turn.

JOHN WAI SANEN, Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities,
interjected that a U-turn at Cruising will be allowed.

MR THORN related that the feedback he received regarding
whet her there would be Uturn signage was that if it's not
forbidden, then it's permtted. However, M. Thorn specified
his preference for signage noting that U-turns are all owed.

12:14: 24 PM

MR. WAl SANEN i ndi cated that DOT&PF would | ook into the issue of
t he nedian and [placing a sign] regarding U-turns.

CO- CHAIR GATTO opined that U turn signage would be especially
hel pful at |arge volune traffic areas.

12:14: 59 PM

NONG HASTANAND, Sabai Restaurant, expressed difficulty wth
those making lefts. He informed the commttee that the
restaurant is losing alnost 40 percent of its revenue. He
related simlar difficulties wth regard to the lack of
comuni cation as to entrance closures. In response to Co-Chair

Gatto, M. Hastanand said that business is down now.

GORDON KEI TH, Regional Director, Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities, in response to Co-Chair GGtto, said he
expected the project to be in its final configuration in a [few
weeks] .

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- Sept ember 16, 2005



CO- CHAIR GATTO inquired as to whether there wll be barricades
for the winter.

MR. WAI SANEN said he didn't see the need for barricades. In
response to a question, he confirmed under the final
configuration there is going to be a left turn for those
traveling fromWasilla to Anchorage.

12: 18: 09 PM

COCHAIR GATTO asked if the final <configuration wll cause
busi nesses to go out of business. He asked if all businesses
wi || have reasonabl e access.

12:18: 39 PM

HANK  HARTNAN, Mat anuska  Musi c, Creekside Plaza, i nformed

everyone that under final configuration the highway returns to a
five-lane road in front of Creekside Plaza, which allows access
to a mall that isn't built yet. M. Hartman, in an attenpt to
get the Gty of Wasilla interested in conpleting these projects
in a tinely manner, suggested that the businesses in a

construction zone should be tax-free. The aforenentioned, he
said, would result in the Gty of Wsilla having a vested
interest in conpleting these projects. M. Hartman expressed

concern with regard to the safety aspect during construction
because all three major intersections were closed, and therefore
an accident woul d' ve been extrenmely difficult to access.

12: 20: 57 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO related that Pat, [the owner] of the Cheesecake
Factory, testified at a prior nmeeting on this nmatter. Duri ng
that neeting she related that had she had notice of the entrance
cl osures, she would ve l|let her patrons know. Co-Chair Gatto
related that business for the Cheesecake Factory was down 75
percent, which is devastating.

12:22: 49 PM

MR. THORN, in response to Representative Neuman, said that he
was unaware of anyone [besides M. Hartnman] borrowi ng funds or
requesting nodifications due to the inpact the construction has
had. He acknow edged that such is a possibility for the future.

M5. WLKINS inquired as to who is liable for traffic routed
through a mall parking |lot during construction. She expressed

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- Sept ember 16, 2005



concern with the routed traffic speeding through the nmal
par ki ng | ot.

12: 24: 15 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO asked if the [owner of the] mall can put up a
sign designating the speed imt wthin the mall parking |ot.

MR, KEITH said that [DOT&PF] needs to |ook at the appropriate
si gnage for the new road.

M5. WLKINS pointed out that part of the frontage road now goes
t hrough a school zone.

12: 25: 33 PM

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGA NS, Alaska State Legislature, asked if
there is a streamined system [that could be inplenmented] for
busi ness owners wanting to put up new signage for the new
routing.

MR. KEITH said that it could be made a priority. He rem nded
the commttee that |ast session the law relative to signs was
changed.

SENATOR HUGGE NS highlighted that there will be nore construction
in the Mat-Su Valley, and therefore he expressed the need to be
nore proactive.

IVB. WLKINS asked what businesses wll be inpacted by
construction next year. She opined that if that know edge is
provi ded now, many of the problens could be addressed prior to
construction such as maki ng signs before construction.

MR. KEI TH addressed the current project for which the work next

year will only be to lay another Ilayer of asphalt, which he
indicated is a slow process. Therefore, he opined that there
will be mniml inpacts on any geographical |ocation. He agreed

that communication is key in order to establish detours and
such. Next year's project, repaving and one signal at Lucille,
is an easier project that will have nuch | ess inpact.

MR. WAl SANEN i ndicated that perhaps sone of the work for next
year's project could be done at night.

MR. KEI TH agr eed.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- Sept ember 16, 2005



MR. THORN noted that he has an ownership interest in a building
that could be inpacted by next year's construction. He
requested being on a list to review the plans, specifically in
regard to nedi an | ocati ons.

MR. WAI SANEN indicated that there will be sonme nedians, but he
opined that there won't be any major nedian work. He suggested
that prior to construction, there should be an open house to
i nform everyone of the plans.

MR. KEITH, in response to Co-Chair Gatto, specified that an open
house woul d be advertised on the radio and in the newspaper. He
recalled that there was a public hearing on the design, which
specified the nedians, for the current project.

MR THORN noted that if there is a platting action in the
borough, |andowners within a certain distance receive witten
notification. He indicated that such notification would be
[ hel pful] with these road projects.

MR. KEI'TH highlighted the difficulty in getting fol ks interested
in the design of a project four to five years prior to its
construction. However, once a contractor is on board and the
construction is about to occur, people conme out.

12: 35: 04 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO suggested that the Chanber neetings draw a | ot of
busi ness owners and would be a great way to inform the business
comunity of construction in the inmediate future.

MR. KEITH indicated that there will be neetings with the Chanber
of Conmmerce regarding the project next year.

MR. THORN pointed out the need for flexibility to adjust when
there are things, such as the nedian, that don't work.

MR. KEITH related that the theory is that there are cars queuing

up for the left turn at intersections. Therefore, it's a
reasonabl e expectation that soneone won't pull out into the |ane
of a left-turn pocket. He wasn't sure how nuch the nedian could

be shortened, but he offered to reviewit.

12:37: 05 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- Sept ember 16, 2005



MR. KEITH noted that the local governnment schedules weekly
neetings at the project site. Those are good avenues from which
to gai n an understandi ng of what's being done, he not ed.

12:38: 40 PM

JEFF POITS, Engineer, informed the conmttee that he wll be
involved with the next phase of construction. He offered to
answer any questions.

12: 38: 59 PM

STU GRAHAM Enpl oyee, Alaska Club, opined that the primry
concern for businesses is what is happening today and this week.
The departnent, |egislature, and mayor should be very interested
in communicating what's going on from week to week, he further
opi ned. He expressed interest in what section of road wll be
under construction and the tinmeline for that construction.
Therefore, he recomrended placing construction schedule notices
in the newspaper.

12:42:26 PM

M5. WLKINS related that she had set up a carnival to attract
people to the mall, but unknown to her the access to the nmal
was closed and thus the carnival was a | oss. She expressed hope
that businesses in the future won't suffer as they have during
this construction project.

12:44: 09 PM

DI ANE KELLER, WMayor, Cty of Wasilla, opined that part of the
problem is that DOT&PF has to plan so far ahead, but the needs
of the community change. Therefore, DOT&PF, she opined, could
focus on having nore flexibility to address the change in the
comunity occurring between the initial plan and construction.
Mayor Keller then pointed out that these businesses provide
opportunities in the community beyond just the ability to
purchase itemns. The inpact of this construction not only
i npacts the bottom line of businesses but it also hanpers their
ability to give back to the comrunity in the manner in which
they are accustoned. She echoed earlier testinony regarding the
i ssue of conmmuni cati on.

MAYOR KELLER expressed concern that the Wasilla business

comunity is now |ooking inpacted these businesses. In fact,
much of the city's budget is based on the sales along the Parks

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- Sept ember 16, 2005



H ghway. Mayor Kell er suggested that perhaps DOT&PF shoul d help
by having a business inpact loan in order to ensure the m ninmm
i npact on the business community and to force DOT&PF to be nore
accountable. Mayor Keller also expressed concern with regard to
the negative inpacts on the neighborhoods, specifically
regarding high traffic zones. Since the city partners with the
state for enforcenent in construction zones, Mayor Keller
expressed the desire for enforcenment to be beyond the
construction zone because the overflow [of traffic] inpacts
ot her areas. Perhaps, the city could be allowed overtine to
patrol in the nearby nei ghborhoods.

MAYOR KELLER returned to earlier testinony regarding who is
liable for accidents in parking lots [through which traffic is

rout ed] . Al though she has been told that flaggers don't
instruct notorists to go across private property, she recalled
be instructed to do just that. Mayor Keller echoed earlier

sentinents regarding the need for [road projects] to be done at
ni ght.

MAYOR KELLER highlighted that the main issue is that the Parks

H ghway has conflicting uses. There are pass through drivers
and residents who want to shop. She opined that the
af orenentioned highlights the need for the alternative
transportation corridor and the need to expedite it. She

suggested that perhaps DOT&PF could review the possibility of
having acceleration lanes to allow drivers to safely enter the

flow of traffic from the |ocal businesses. She then expressed
concern with regard to the anount of mleage that detours cause,
especially in the face of rising gas prices. Furt her nore,
detours can take precious tine of energency responders. Mayor
Keller returned to her suggestion that DOT&F should take
responsibility for inpacts to |ocal businesses. She informed

the commttee that after DOT&PF nekes capital inprovenents, it's
left to the city to maintain the roads. However, the city can't
continue to agree to maintain these roads when its revenue is
based on the sal es tax.

12:53: 50 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO asked if DOT&PF takes into consideration the type
of road to which it diverts traffic, such as when traffic was
diverted to the curvy Trunk Road.

MR. KEI TH replied yes.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- Sept ember 16, 2005



CO CHAIR GATTO suggested the possibility of a caution sign. He
t hen thanked DOT&PF for the early striping it did on Trunk Road.

MR. KEITH pointed out that in situations [when traffic 1is
diverted] striping is a priority, such that the nmgjor roads are
striped first.

12:56: 43 PM

PAUL GARDNER, Ivanti Inc., comented that when he has talked
wi th DOT&PF about design, it has been receptive to addressing

concerns. Therefore, he suggested determning how to proceed
such that individuals designing the project work on that sane
proj ect. Furthernore, he suggested allowing the city to have
nore of a voice in the project. M. Gardner related that he

spoke with DOT&PF regarding trying to slow traffic, although he
has been told several times that nuch of the design and pl anning
of the Parks Highway is an effort to nove traffic as fast as
possible. This corridor should be viewed as a business zone, he
opi ned. M. Gardner addressed the suggestion of newspaper
notices with regard to construction, and opined that it isn't
adequate. He suggested sending notices to those inpacted.

1: 00: 58 PM

MR, KEITH, in response to comments and questions, explained that
the location of signal lights are based on an equation that
takes into consideration the volune of traffic in an area and
t he nunber of accidents.

1: 02: 15 PM

SHARRI SM TH, Omer, Cold Stone Creanery, recalled a DOI&PF
project on the AOd Seward H ghway about six years ago, during
which a very simlar forum as today was utilized. Ms. Smth
said that she has no confidence that DOT&PF will fix the problem
of conmuni cation/notice because it has existed for over siXx
years. Therefore, she said that she is looking to the
|l egislature to address this situation such that DOT&PF is
required to provide notice and rei nburse businesses for | osses.

MAYOR KELLER interjected that she would like the speed limt
within the city limts of the Gty of Wsilla reduced to 35
m | es per hour.

1: 05: 04 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- Sept ember 16, 2005



COCHAIR GATTO inquired as to how the speed |imts are
det er m ned.

1: 05: 09 PM

MR. KEITH agreed that the community of Wisilla needs an
al ternate access. He al so agreed that there are conpeting uses
of the Parks H ghway that don't match, which is why there is the
need for a bypass. Wth regard to traffic signals and reducing

the speed Ilimt, he said those are counterproductive to
relieving traffic congestion and noving nore traffic through an
ar ea. He noted that the alternative to a bypass route is an

eight-lane road through Wasilla, which he characterized as
"scary."

MAYOR KELLER opined that the City of Wsilla wants a corridor
around the city and the speed limt reduced within the city.

MR KEITH said with that scenario, the traffic has been
separated by use. However, first an alternate route has to be
construct ed.

MAYOR KELLER disagreed, and reiterated the need to reduce the
speed limt. She enphasized that public safety should be the
hi ghest priority.

1: 09: 31 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO noted that the discussion had strayed from the
original agenda of the neeting. Drawing it back to the
specified topic, he determined that no one else wshed to
testify.

1:10: 06 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 1:10
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- Sept ember 16, 2005



